
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

Please note that, pursuant to the authority provided by Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 1(1), the City has determined 
that in-person meetings of the City Council are not practical or prudent due to the COVID-19 public health pandemic 
and the declared national, state, and local emergencies.  Meetings of the Council will be conducted by electronic or 
telephonic means.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 3, to the extent practical and possible, the City Council will 
allow individuals to monitor the meeting electronically.  Access to the meeting can be obtained online by following 
the link provided below or by contacting the City Hall for instructions and methods for obtaining access to the meeting. 

Meeting Access Information: https://www.ci.independence.mn.us/meetings 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY JUNE 1, 2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20493-20516, Batch #2 
Checks Numbered 20517). 

c. Approval of Large Assembly Permits: 
i. Triathlon at Lake Rebecca – August 1, 2021. 

ii. Wedding at 3757 Independence Road – June 12, 2021. 
iii. Tour de Tonka Bike Ride – August 7, 2021. 
iv. Wedding at 5675 Koch’s Crossing – June 19, 2021. 

d. Agriculture Preserve Termination Application: 2160 Nelson Road. 
e. Approval to Purchase Furniture from Henricksen for the City Hall Offices. 
f. Approval to Move a House into the City and Locate on the Property Identified by PID 

No. 02-118-24-12-0012 (5845 Lake Sarah Heights Drive). 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. Presentation of the 2020 Financial Audit – Chris Knopik, Clifton Larson Allen. 
 



 

a. 2020 Draft Financial Audit 
 

b. 2020 Audit Presentation  
 

8. Brent Foster (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following actions for the property located at 
4755 Lake Sarah Heights Cir. (PID No. 02-118-24-12-0007) in the City of Independence, 
MN: 

 
a. RESOLUTION 21-0601-01: Considering approval of a variance to allow a reduced 

side yard setback for a detached accessory structure on the property located at 4755 
Lake Sarah Heights Cir. 
 

9. Nate Bjerga (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the property located at 
4991 Perkinsville Rd. (PID No. 24-118-24-41-0010) in the City of Independence, MN: 

 
a. RESOLUTION 21-0601-02: Considering approval of a variance to allow a reduced 

side yard setback associated with a proposed building addition on the subject 
property. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 

11. Adjourn. 



1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. May 18, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, MAY 18, 2021 –6:30 P.M. 

Police Department Conference Room 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 5:30 p.m. 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner 

VISITORS: Gary Kroells 

 

3. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of Workshop Meeting Minutes from the April 29, 2021 Workshop. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the May 4, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20467-20470, Batch #2 Check 

Numbered 20471-20492). 

d. Approval of Pay Applications #5 and 6, Rochon Corporation for City Hall Renovation. 

e. Approval of Solicitors Permits as follows: 

i. Logan Bauer, Lebegue Properties LLC (dba V.L. Builders) 

ii. Joanna Nowak, Lebegue Properties LLC (dba V.L. Builders) 

iii. Victor Lebegue, Lebegue Properties LLC (dba V.L. Builders) 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, 

McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

4. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

5. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings:  

• Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting (virtual) 

• Deadly Force Training Workshop (in-person) 



2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. May 18, 2021 

 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings:  

• None 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings: 

• Maple Plain Fire Commission Meeting (in person) 

 

Betts attended the following meetings:  

• Maple Plain Fire Commission Meeting (in person) 

• Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting (virtual) 

• West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting (in person) 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: (Virtual- unless noted) 

• Highway 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 

• Lake Independence Meeting (in person) 

• Regional Council of Mayors Meeting 

• Maple Plain Fire Commission Meeting (in person) 

• Senior Community Service Finance Committee Meeting 

• Orono School Board Meeting 

• West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting (in person) 

• National League of Cities Meeting 

• Northwest League of Municipalities Meeting (in person) 

• Orono Healthy Youth Committee Meeting 

• National League of Cities Conference Call 

 

Horner attended the following meetings:  

• BKV architect meetings (in person and virtual) 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

➢ MnDOT meetings on construction efforts for Highway 12 and 92 (virtual) 

 

6. West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the April 2021 Activity Report. 

 

Kroells stated there were 1,378 incidents as of April 30, 2021. He said West Hennepin Public Safety handled 

203 incidents during the month of March with an additional 111 for Maple Plain. Kroells said the numbers are 

up slightly from last year. Kroells noted the department has hired a new officer (Scott Isaacson). 

 

➢ For a complete report see the packet for tonight’s meeting 

 

7. Approval of County Road 92 Turnback Road Renaming and Authorization for Staff to Sign the CSAH 

92/TH 12 Construction Project Plan Set. 

 

Kaltsas said Staff presented information relating to this issue at our recent workshop. Hennepin County is 

planning on turning back a portion of CSAH 92 to the City following completion of the Hwy 12/CSASH 92 

project. In addition, the City will be taking over the newly constructed portion of the road that provides access 

to the property located at 7899 US Hwy 12.  

 



3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. May 18, 2021 

 

The City will formally accept the turnback via an agreement that will be presented for consideration at an 

upcoming City Council Meeting. The City is being asked to provide a new name for the section of road (see 

location below) to be given to the City. Following discussion at the last City Council Meeting, staff did 

research the historic/cultural/architectural history information prepared by Hennepin County for this project. 

There were several names that showed up in the studies that related to the initial settlement of the City and 

historic farm owners. Names such as Armstrong (original settlement name), Storeson (original owner of 7735 

Hwy 12) and Kleven (original owner of 2825 County Road 92 North) all showed up in the study. 

 

Council had discussed the renaming and recommended that Rumpza Road be considered as that is a 

family name that relates to some of the land in this area. Staff is seeking a recommendation from Council 

on the road naming. 

 

Staff is also seeking City Council authorization to approve the final plan set for the CSAH 92/TH 12 

improvement project. This is a formality that is required by Hennepin County and MNDOT for a project to 

commence in the City. A copy of the overall plan is attached for Council information. Please let me know if 

you have any questions and or would like additional information (full plan set). 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer for approval of County Road 92 Turnback Road Renamed to 

Rumpza Road and Authorization for Staff to Sign the CSAH 92/TH 12 Construction Project Plan Set. 

Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Betts, and Spencer. Nays: None.  Absent: None. None. Abstain. None.  

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

8.  Open/ Misc. 

 

9.  Adjourn. 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to adjourn at 6:22 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Betts, 

and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

___________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 

































Gary S. Kroells 5-27-21















Page 1  

City of Independence 
 

Consider Approving A/V Contract and Community Room Furniture Purchase 
 

To:  City Council 

From:  Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date:  June 1, 2021 
 
Discussion: 

 
Staff presented information relating to the City Hall furniture proposal at the April 29, 2021 City Council 
Workshop. The City would like to move forward with the purchase of office furniture so that we do not have 
any delays relating to completing the renovation work at City Hall. A short summary is as follows: 

 
City Hall Furniture: The furniture replacement proposal would include furnishing and installation of new 
cubicles, desks and chairs for the City Hall space.  The layout of the space has been changed based on the 
renovation.  It was noted at our last discussion that the old furniture has been removed and stored.  The 
City would have to reinstall the old furniture and likely modify a few of the spaces to fit the updated 
configuration (cost ~$3-5k).  The proposed furniture layout would provide several updated features such as 
clear glass dividers to allow light through to the interior space, automatic raising desks to allow both sitting 
and standing work space and multiple monitor stands integrated into the desks.  Staff has spent a 
considerable amount of time working with various vendors to design the space and value engineer the 
components to result in an efficient and cost-effective proposal.    The City received two proposals for the 
new furniture ($26,489.87 – Henricksen and $34,326.65 National Business Furniture).  The funding for this 
purchase would come from the proceeds of the project bonds. 

 

Total Cost: $26,489.87 - Henricksen 
 

Council Recommendation: 
 
City Council is asked to consider approval of the proposal and authorize the City Administrator to sign the 
contract on behalf of the City of Independence. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Henricksen Proposal for Services 
 Proposed Office Layout 



REV DATE REVISION DESCRIPTION DWN

OFFICE
129

HA
 3

0x
72

OEP

O
H 

30

M
 B

/F

CR 28x24x30-LF

54
x7

2

50Hx24W

EV
O

 T
AS

K

FP
 2

4-
L

H
M

T5

24x78

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

50WM

24
x6

6

HM
T5

XB
42

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

HM
T5

H
M

T5

O
H 

36

SC15Hx24W

KEY 156
NOT ADA

W
M

B

48-0"

42"

47-1/2"

20
' -

9-
1/

2"

c:\Users\a.johnson2\Desktop\FILES FOR 5.26\CTYINDE_CITY HALL.cmdrw5/26/2021

1

[Sold to, Address, Line #1]

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

FURNITURE PLAN

[Sold to, Address, City]
[Sold to, Address, Line #2]

These drawings must be reviewed by the Owner / Architect / Contractor,
or other appropriate representative prior to furniture order.  If these
drawings are correct, mark the appropriate box below.  If incorrect, note
corrections to be made and return to Henricksen for corrections.

DMV

AEJ

entry,

TBD

LAMINATE: FLORENCE WALNUT
DESK SHROUD METAL: TITANIUM
TABLE BASE: TITANIUM
PULLS: SQUARE/SILVER

GUEST CHAIR MESH: DUSK
GUEST CHAIR UPHOLSTERY: PARKER-NIGHTFALL
GUEST CHAIR FRAME: BLACK
GUEST CHAIR FEET: CASTERS

STOOL UPHOLSTERY: PARKER-NIGHTFALL
STOOL MESH: BLACK
STOOL FRAME: BLACK

TASK CHAIR FRAME: BLACK
TASK CHAIR UPHOLSTERY: DAPPER-CHARCOAL
TASK CHAIR MESH: DUSK
TASK CASTERS: HARD CASTERS FOR CARPET

3/8"=1'-0"

DAPPER-CHARCOAL

Project #:
Scale:

Date

PARKER-NIGHTFALL

Org. Date:

TITANIUM

N

BINARY-DIAMOND

Signature

Revise and Resubmit

Print 

OFFICE 129

Acct Exec:

www.henricksen.com

Approved

Drawing Review

Approved as Noted

FLORENCE WALNUT

Sheet Number:

KEY PLAN

Drawn By:

F.



REV DATE REVISION DESCRIPTION DWN

60-0"H

TA

BNRY03

65
-0

"

30-0"

65Hx30W: Qty 4

60-0"H

TA

BNRY03

65
-0

"

36-0"

65Hx36W: Qty 4

45-0"H

TA

BNRY03

50
-0

"

24-0"

50Hx24W: Qty 6

45-0"H

TA

BNRY03

50
-0

"

30-0"

50Hx30W: Qty 8
A1 F1 H1 J1

OFFICE
128

R.R.
137

Allsteel Picklist

66-A6
30x66

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66-A6
30x66

EV
O

 T
AS

K

EVO TASK

EV
O

 T
AS

K

EV
O

 T
AS

K

EVO TASK

24
x6

6

O
ES

SC

CL-L

24x66

FB

MB/F

O
H 

30

FBO
H 

36

FSL

OEP

O
H 

30

CDG

O
H 

36

30
x5

4

SC

FSL

OEP

MB/F

O
H 

30

24
x6

6

MB/F

FSL

MB/F

FB
24x72

24
x6

6

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

CL-L

MB/F SC

O
ES

24x72

O
H 

36

SC

CL-L

HP
B

OEP

SC

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

3 WS

KEY 155

2 WS KEY 152

KEY 154

NOT ADA

KEY 153

HOLD TO

H
O

LD
 T

O

KEY 151

LF
 2

/3
6

LF
 2

/3
6

LF
 2

/3
6

MAD

M
AD

M
AD

M
AD

MAD

CDGCDG

SC
 4

2

18-0"

58
"

387-7/8"

12
7-

3/
8"

These drawings must be reviewed by the Owner / Architect / Contractor,
or other appropriate representative prior to furniture order.  If these
drawings are correct, mark the appropriate box below.  If incorrect, note
corrections to be made and return to Henricksen for corrections.

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

FURNITURE PLAN

[Sold to, Address, Line #1]

5/26/2021

2

[Sold to, Address, Line #2]

c:\Users\a.johnson2\Desktop\FILES FOR 5.26\CTYINDE_CITY HALL.cmdrw

[Sold to, Address, City]

LAMINATE: FLORENCE WALNUT
STORAGE/SUPPORTS: FLINT
PULLS: SQUARE
MONITOR ARMS: BLACK
MOBILE PED CUSHION: PARKER-NIGHTFALL

TASK CHAIR FRAME: BLACK
TASK CHAIR UPHOLSTERY: DAPPER-CHARCOAL
TASK CHAIR MESH: DUSK
TASK CASTERS: HARD CASTERS FOR CARPET

PANEL FRAMES: TITANIUM
PANEL FABRIC: BINARY-DIAMOND
PANEL GLASS: CLEAR

entry,
1/4"=1'-0"
20110396

AEJ
DMV

NO POWER IN PANELS

DAPPER-CHARCOAL

Scale:

TITANIUM

Signature

KEY PLAN

Sheet Number:

ALL OTHER PANELS 50" TALL+15" CLEAR GLASS       65" PANELS DO NOT HAVE GLASS

Project #:

Org. Date:

Date

Drawing Review

BINARY-DIAMOND

www.henricksen.com

Approved as Noted

Acct Exec:

65" PANELS TO MOUNT OVERHEADS TO

Revise and Resubmit

F.

Approved

Drawn By:

OFFICE 128

N

Print 

FLORENCE WALNUT PARKER-NIGHTFALL

65" PANELS TO MOUNT OVERHEADS TO



REV REVISION DESCRIPTION DWN DATE

60-0"H

TA
BNRY03

65
-0

"

30-0"

65Hx30W: Qty 4

60-0"H

TA
BNRY03

65
-0

"

36-0"

65Hx36W: Qty 4

45-0"H

TA
BNRY03

50
-0

"

24-0"

50Hx24W: Qty 6

45-0"H

TA
BNRY03

50
-0

"

30-0"

50Hx30W: Qty 8

Allsteel Panels - Terrace

A1 F1 H1 J1

OFFICE
129

OFFICE
128

R.R.
137

H1

H1

J1 J1

J1

J1

H1

H1

J1

J1

H1

H1
J1

J1

F1F1

A1A1

F1F1

A1A1

H1

H1

J1 J1

J1

J1

F1F1

A1A1

F1F1

A1A1

H1

H1

J1

J1

H1

H1
J1

J1

65
Hx

30
W

50
E

65
Hx

30
W

SC15Hx24W

65
Hx

36
W

50Hx24W

65
E

15HLE

50E 50E

SC15Hx30W

50E
50Hx24W 50Hx24W

50E

65
W

M

50
Hx

30
W

SC
15

Hx
30

W

SC15Hx30W
50T

50E

TC
30

SC15Hx24W 50Hx30W

65
Hx

36
W

50Hx30W
15HLE

50E

TC
36

TC
36

TC
30

50WM
SC15Hx24W

50WM

50T

50
W

M

50Hx30W
SC15Hx30W

47-1/2"

58
"

42"

OFFICE
129

OFFICE
128

R.R.
137

Allsteel Picklist

LKFE1SLV.SEQ/151.2 1
LKFE4SLV.SEQ/153.3 1
LKFE2SLV.X156.1 1

66-A6
30x66

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66
-A

6
30

x6
6

66-A6
30x66

EV
O

 T
AS

K

EVO TASKEVO TASK

EV
O

 T
AS

K

EV
O

 T
AS

K

HA
 3

0x
72

24
x6

6

O
ES

SC

CL-L

O
H 

36

24x66
MB/F FB

M
 B

/F

HP
B

MB/F

FP
 2

4-
L

H
M

T5

O
H 

30

FBO
H 

36

FSL

OEP

O
H 

30

OEP

CDG

O
H 

36

30
x5

4

SC

FSL

OEP

MB/F

O
H 

30

24
x6

6

MB/F

FSL

MB/F

FB
CR 28x24x30-LF

54
x7

2

24x72

24
x6

6

CL-L

SC

24x78

O
ES

SC

EV
O

 T
AS

K

H
M

T5

HM
T5

SC

HM
T5

XB
42

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

RE
LA

TE
 S

ID
E

CL-L

24x72

KEY 156

3 WS

KEY 155

2 WS KEY 152

KEY 154

H
O

LD
 T

O

HOLD TO

NOT ADA

KEY 153

KEY 151

LF
 2

/3
6

LF
 2

/3
6

LF
 2

/3
6

MAD

M
AD

M
AD

M
AD

MAD

CDGCDG

SC
 4

2

W
M

B

47-1/2"

18-0"

58
"

42"

12
7-

3/
8"

387-7/8"

[Sold to, Address, City]

3

return to Henricksen for corrections.
mark the appropriate box below. If incorrect, note corrections to be made and
appropriate representative prior to furniture order. If these drawings are correct,
These drawings must be reviewed by the Owner/Architect/Contractor, or other

[Sold to, Address, Line #2]

c:\Users\a.johnson2\Desktop\FILES FOR 5.26\CTYINDE_CITY HALL.cmdrw

FURNITURE PLAN

5/26/2021

[Sold to, Address, Line #1]

AEJ

3/8"=1'-0"

[Order entry,

TBD

*Preliminary Plan*
Not for

Furniture Order

Drawings and specifications provide interior designs and layouts in sufficient
detail for the installation of projects. The designs represented are the property of
Henricksen and shall not be shared, used by, or disclosed to any persons or firm
outside the scope of this project without written consent of Henricksen.
Architects and contractors shall be responsible for all dimensions and conditions
on the job and shall notify Henricksen of any variations from the dimensions and
conditions shown. Written dimensions take precedence over scaled dimensions.

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

DMV

Scale:

KEY PLAN

Drawing Review

Acct Exec:

Drawn By: Sheet Number:

OVRALL

Org. Date:

N

NOTES

Project #: F.

Approved as Noted

Signature

Revise and Resubmit

www.henricksen.com

Approved

Date

Print 



REV REVISION DESCRIPTION DWN DATE

COMMUNITY
ROOM

130

CITY
COUNCIL

135

STORAGE
131

STORAGE /
AREA OF
REFUGE

134

CONFERENCE
125

WORKROOM
127

EQUIPMENT
8

KITCHEN
110

CORRIDOR
141

OFFICE
129

OFFICE
128

R.R.
137

R.R.
138

ADA R.R.
139

ADA R.R.
140

VESTIBULE
114

LOBBY A
101

LOBBY B
103

CONFERENCE
127

BREAK ROOM

NE
ST

ED
 TA

BL
ES

ON
 C

AS
TE

RS

REFSTOVE

DW

5' 
- 6

 1
09

/1
28

"
5' 

- 0
"

5' 
- 0

"

7' - 6"

Allsteel Picklist

LKFE1SLV.SEQ/151.2 1
LKFE4SLV.SEQ/153.3 1
LKFE2SLV.X156.1 1

KEY 156

3 WS

KEY 155

2 WS KEY 152KEY 151

H
O

LD
 T

O

NOT ADA

HOLD TO

KEY 154
KEY 153

47-1/2"

48-0"

18-0"

58
"

42"

20
' -

9-
1/

2"

10' -0"

12
7-

3/
8"

387-7/8"

c:\Users\a.johnson2\Desktop\FILES FOR 5.26\CTYINDE_CITY HALL.cmdrw5/26/2021

[Sold to, Address, Line #1]

return to Henricksen for corrections.
mark the appropriate box below. If incorrect, note corrections to be made and
appropriate representative prior to furniture order. If these drawings are correct,
These drawings must be reviewed by the Owner/Architect/Contractor, or other

[Sold to, Address, City]

4

FURNITURE PLAN

[Sold to, Address, Line #2]

*Preliminary Plan*
Not for

Furniture Order

NTS

AEJ

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

Drawings and specifications provide interior designs and layouts in sufficient
detail for the installation of projects. The designs represented are the property of
Henricksen and shall not be shared, used by, or disclosed to any persons or firm
outside the scope of this project without written consent of Henricksen.
Architects and contractors shall be responsible for all dimensions and conditions
on the job and shall notify Henricksen of any variations from the dimensions and
conditions shown. Written dimensions take precedence over scaled dimensions.

[Order entry,

TBD

DMV

Revise and Resubmit

Org. Date:

F.

Print 

OVRALL

Project #:

www.henricksen.com

Approved

N

Sheet Number:

Scale:

Approved as Noted

Drawing Review

Acct Exec:

Signature

KEY PLAN

Drawn By:

NOTES

Date



DAWN JADIN

1101 West River Parkway Suite 100
Minneapolis, Minnesota  55415

612.330.0012
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

20110396

ATTN: BETH HORNER

1920 COUNTY RD 90

INDEPENDENCE,   MN 55359

5/27/2021

d.jadin@henricksen.com

Prepared For:

www.henricksen.com

Prepared By:

Deliver To:

Direct:

Quote No.:

Updated:

Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

APACSM Monitor Arm Sliding Mount5 $69.60 $348.00

.BLK Black

ABKCR HAT to Panel Bracket C-leg RH1 $51.15 $51.15

$(P1) Grd 1 Paint Op6ons
.P02 Flint / Charcoal

AMASD Dynamic Dual Monitor - Standard Weight5 $295.20 $1,476.00

.BLK Black

OH1530RDS 15H x30W Receding Door Overhead-Square Pull3 $229.68 $689.04

.YZ Sys:Stride-DNA-Op6mize
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint
.EL PULL: Ma>e Silver
.OMT omt Core to Ord key Alike

OH1536RDS 15H x36W Receding Door Overhead-Square Pull3 $242.44 $727.32

.YZ Sys:Stride-DNA-Op6mize
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint
.EL PULL: Ma>e Silver
.OMT omt Core to Ord key Alike

TK05024WR Structural Raceway Pnl Fr-No Top Trim 50Hx24W3 $78.59 $235.77

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK05030WR Structural Raceway Pnl Fr-No Top Trim 50Hx30W4 $83.23 $332.92

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK06530WR Structural Raceway Pnl Fr-No Top Trim 65Hx30W2 $87.58 $175.16

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK06536WR Structural Raceway Pnl Fr-No Top Trim 65Hx36W2 $91.06 $182.12

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK315HF High/Low Flat Connector Kit - 15"H2 $17.69 $35.38

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

Page 1 of 6



Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

TK330PTFK Flat Top Trim 30W w/clips2 $13.05 $26.10

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK336PTFK Flat Top Trim 36W w/clips2 $15.08 $30.16

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK350EF E End Trim Flat ConnKit - 50"H base panel7 $26.97 $188.79

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK350TF T 3-way Flat Connector Kit - 50"H base panel2 $45.53 $91.06

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK350WF W Flat Wall Mount Kit - 50" Length3 $42.34 $127.02

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK365EF E End Trim Flat ConnKit - 65"H base panel1 $28.71 $28.71

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK365WF W Flat Wall Mount Kit - 65" Length1 $49.88 $49.88

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK41524TGSF 15H x 24 W Flat Glass Panel Mntd Screen3 $127.31 $381.93

.LC Clear Glass
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TK41530TGSF 15H x 30 W Flat Glass Panel Mntd Screen4 $136.01 $544.04

.LC Clear Glass
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8T Titanium

TKG45024T Ter Tackable Acous'c Tile 50H x 24W6 $43.79 $262.74

$(A) GRD A FAB
.BNRY FAB: Binary
03 Diamond

TKG45030T Ter Tackable Acous'c Tile 50H x 30W8 $49.88 $399.04

$(A) GRD A FAB
.BNRY FAB: Binary
03 Diamond

TKG46530T Ter Tackable Acous'c Tile 65H x 30W4 $63.22 $252.88

$(A) GRD A FAB
.BNRY FAB: Binary
03 Diamond

TKG46536T Ter Tackable Acous'c Tile 65H x 36W4 $71.34 $285.36

$(A) GRD A FAB
.BNRY FAB: Binary
03 Diamond

TWTH Horizontal Wall Track2 $24.94 $49.88

Page 2 of 6



Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

K62924OLG Involve 29.5Hx24D Open End Support Freestanding1 $182.12 $182.12

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

K62930OLG Involve 29.5Hx30D Open End Support Freestanding2 $195.46 $390.92

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

DWW-MHWNO Evo Task Mesh High Back Chair 4D Adj Arms no FC5 $421.43 $2,107.15

.BLK Black

.D Dusk

.L Yes

.2 Standard

.BLK Black

.H Black Hard Tread
$(1) Grd 1 Uph
.DAPR Fab: Dapper
01 Charcoal
.TC00 Coordina6ng

LKFE1SLV Lock Core Kit Silver - 1 Core 2 Keys1 $11.60 $11.60

$(KEYNUM) Key Number
.SEQ/ Key Number Sequence Start
151 Key Number 151
.2 Quan6ty: 2

LKFE4SLV Lock Core Kit Silver - 4 Cores 2 Keys1 $69.60 $69.60

$(KEYNUM) Key Number
.SEQ/ Key Number Sequence Start
153 Key Number 153
.3 Quan6ty: 3

YPLP283618FFM Align 28x36x18 2H Lateral Plinth MetFront3 $478.80 $1,436.40

.BX Recessed Plinth

.S Square
EL Ma>e Silver
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 CLR: Flint
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.NA Match Case
.X Omit Lock

YPPA2415SC Seat cushion for metal mobile pedestal 24"D5 $74.53 $372.65

$(3) GRD 3 UPH
.PRKR Parker
22 NighHall

YPPM211524BFMS B/F MobilePed 21Hx15Wx24D Metal Front Sqr Pull5 $192.27 $961.35

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 CLR: Flint
.X Omit Lock

T624FB Flat Bracket 24D3 $14.79 $44.37

A6REC3S2LCF A6 3 Stage 2 Leg Rectangle C Foot5 $499.09 $2,495.45

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint
.X Standard Glide
.MEM Memory Preset

AF5RS6630D 66Wx30D Rect Lam Flat Edge Single Surface5 $181.54 $907.70

$(L1WDGR) L1 Woodgrain Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
.FW Edg: Florence Walnut

Page 3 of 6



Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

.GC Center Grommet
P Plas6c Grommet

AYBHEP2429 Align Adept Style 24Dx29H H-Leg Sup2 $58.29 $116.58

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

CDG Gussets (1 Pr)2 $35.96 $71.92

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

Z6CLFL Fixed C-Leg LeH for Flat/Sq Edge3 $111.36 $334.08

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 CLR: Flint

CSL2429F Freestanding 24Dx29-1/2H Sup Leg3 $48.14 $144.42

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

T52466S Primary 24Dx66W Flat Eg Lam w/Grommets4 $157.47 $629.88

$(L1WDGR) L1 Woodgrain Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
.FW Edg: Florence Walnut
.P Plas6c Grommet

T52472S Primary 24Dx72W Flat Eg Lam w/Grommets2 $164.43 $328.86

$(L1WDGR) L1 Woodgrain Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
.FW Edg: Florence Walnut
.P Plas6c Grommet

T53054S Primary 30Dx54W Flat Eg Lam w/Grommets1 $142.68 $142.68

$(L1WDGR) L1 Woodgrain Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
.FW Edg: Florence Walnut
.P Plas6c Grommet

T6BK Worksurface Bracket Kit3 $14.79 $44.37

$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P02 Flint

Z5SC54 42W External Supt Channel for 54W W/S1 $18.85 $18.85

PS Power Strip 108" Cord3 $78.75 $236.25

6- 6 Power
B Black

DWW-MHWNO Evo Task Mesh High Back Chair 4D Adj Arms no FC1 $421.43 $421.43

.BLK Black

.D Dusk

.L Yes

.2 Standard

.BLK Black

.H Black Hard Tread
$(1) Grd 1 Uph
.DAPR Fab: Dapper
01 Charcoal
.TC00 Coordina6ng

RLM-MUCA Relate Side Std Mesh Back/Uph Seat/Casters/Armless2 $279.35 $558.70

.3 Mul6-surface Caster

.CBK Charblack
LKM01 CLR: Carbon

Page 4 of 6



Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

$(3) GRD 3 UPH
.PRKR Parker
22 NighHall

LKFE2SLV Lock Core Kit Silver - 2 Cores 2 Keys1 $11.60 $11.60

$(KEYNUM) Key Number
.X156 Key Number 156
.1 Quan6ty: 1

WKCACW50 Approach 50lb Counterweight1 $91.14 $91.14

WKCSTN283024-LF Approach Lateral File 28H 30W 24D1 $455.11 $455.11

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
.SP Square
EL Ma>e Silver
.OMT omt Core to Ord key Alike

WKDAFNJ297230 Approach Desk 72W x 30D1 $1,383.25 $1,383.25

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
.B LeJ and Right
P Plas6c Grommet
$(P1) P1 Paint Opts
.P8V Textured Titanium
.PR6 Silver
.MEM Memory Preset

WKFPFN281224LH Approach False Ped 12Wx24D LH1 $190.49 $190.49

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut

WKMP1460 Approach Cred and Desk Mod. Panel 14Hx60W1 $122.13 $122.13

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut

WKPMFN241620-BF Approach Mobile Ped 16Wx20D1 $380.07 $380.07

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut
.SP Square
EL Ma>e Silver
.OMT omt Core to Ord key Alike

WKWSRS7824 Approach Wksf Rectangular 78Wx24D1 $179.55 $179.55

.F FSC Mix Credit
$(L1CORE) L1 Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
FW Florence Walnut

Page 5 of 6



Part NumberQty Descrip'on Tag Unit 

Price

Extended

Price

.C Center
P Plas6c Grommet

AMPTLF5472MDIA Structure 54"x72" MediaHlf DiamondTop Lam SqrEdge1 $489.65 $489.65

.X Standard Wood
$(L1WDGR) L1 Woodgrain Lam Opts
.LFW1 Lam: Florence Walnut
.FW Edg: Florence Walnut
.C0 No Cutout

AMPTWMB Structure Wall Mount Bracket1 $35.00 $35.00

.P71 Black

AMPTXM42G Structure X Base Med. Bar Height with Glides1 $196.35 $196.35

$(P1) P1 Paint Grade
.P8V Textured Titanium

PS Power Strip 108" Cord1 $78.75 $78.75

6- 6 Power
B Black

HMT5 Mo'vate Task-Flex Back-Uph Seat Adj Footring4 $306.00 $1,224.00

.N Arm: No Arm

.H CASTER: Hard (Standard)

.IM Black Mesh
$(3) Grade: III Uph
.PRKR Parker
22 NighHall
.SB Base: Standard Plas6c Black
.T FRAME: Black

Installa'on/Design/PM1 $2,655.00 $2,655.00

GRAND TOTAL $26,489.87

Approved By:_________________________________________________________                          Date:_________________

PLEASE REMIT WITH COPY OF YOUR PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                   PO:_________________

All items are special order and cannot be changed, cancelled or returned once factory production runs have closed.  Installation to occur during regular
business hours unless otherwise specified.  Site to be accessible by commercial vehicles, free of obstacles & debris and subject to inspection and
approval by Henricksen PSG.  Construction punchlist to be completed before furniture is delivered and installed Installation of modular electrical 

components to be performed by licensed electrician and not included in this proposal unless otherwise specified.  Any existing furniture to be removed 
from areas designated to receive new furniture prior to delivery/installation of new furniture.  Handling of existing furniture not included in this proposal 
unless otherwise specified.  

Page 6 of 6















 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
2020 Financial Summary and Audit 

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, Administrator 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2021 

 
Summary: 
The City Council is annually presented with the audit findings and receives quarterly financial reports 
detailing the current financial status of the City.  The reports are typically presented for information to the 
Council.  The City’s Auditor, Chris Knopik with Clifton Larson Allen will be at the meeting to present the 
2020 Year End Financial Audit.  There are a few key points that are further detailed in the audit report that I 
would like to highlight.   
 

• The City received an unmodified opinion for the state of the City’s financials.  This is the highest 
opinion that can be obtained. 
 

• There was one material finding relating to how a payment to PSCWMO was recorded.  Payment 
for 2021 fees ~$50,000 was made in January of 2021 and accidently booked to 2020.   

 
• The City’s fund balance increased from 48.1% to 51.1% (City has targeted 50%). 

 
• The City’s year-ending actual versus budget again shows that the City’s expenditures came in less 

than revenues.   
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. 2020 Audit Report 
2. 2020 Audit Presentation 

 
 



WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOURCING | AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING
Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor

©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

City of Independence, Minnesota
Audit Results and Communications
December 31, 2020



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Agenda

AUDIT RESULTS FINANCIAL RESULTS MN LEGAL 
COMPLIANCE 

LETTER

REQUIRED 
COMMUNICATIONS

INTERNAL CONTROL 
LETTER

OTHER ITEMS



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results

3

Audit Opinion
• Unmodified (Clean)

Other Information
• Comparative statement for the Sanitary 

Sewer Fund



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

4

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Government-wide Statements

Cash & Investments Expenses Expendable Net Position

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Cash & Investments 2,400,047$      2,317,446$      1,876,037$      1,699,751$      3,153,077$      1,903,697$      1,811,579$      2,113,590$     2,334,404$     5,303,425$    
Expenses 2,860,683        2,942,665        3,311,817        3,130,273        3,355,597        3,335,346        3,315,036        3,511,171       3,622,152       3,997,610      
Expendable Net Position 1,981,543        2,577,263        2,804,415        2,815,582        2,504,514        2,354,330        2,428,313        2,587,330       2,628,856       2,871,605      



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

5

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Miscellaneous 12,876 21,197 38,120 10,896 19,524 16,365 31,110 8,271 71,177 5,728

Interest on Investments 6,814 4,920 5,624 2,217 2,884 5,429 4,347 6,374 8,810 4,769

Special Assessments - - - - - 2,748 - 7,445 - -

Fines and Forfeitures 35,278 41,364 40,094 49,188 49,517 54,637 48,421 46,593 45,292 35,323

Charges for Service 21,907 91,881 74,295 100,542 81,973 37,275 34,854 46,288 36,219 26,584

Intergovernmental 67,384 25,819 48,849 88,440 84,866 46,312 84,224 82,573 44,345 26,185

Licenses and Permits 117,658 175,528 157,077 166,832 123,407 181,139 246,018 188,169 240,990 273,858

Property Taxes 2,008,482 1,952,097 1,957,411 1,980,146 2,183,200 2,211,660 2,360,957 2,534,056 2,612,827 2,751,748

 -

 250,000

 500,000

 750,000

 1,000,000

 1,250,000

 1,500,000

 1,750,000

 2,000,000

 2,250,000

 2,500,000

 2,750,000

 3,000,000

 3,250,000

 3,500,000
General Fund Revenues



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

6

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Capital Outlay 189,216 133,043 153,302 187,489 10,881 2,612 95,534 11,062 15,534 26,861

Culture and Recreation 16,986 16,496 38,375 21,157 23,453 16,906 16,013 15,430 13,441 12,097

Public Works 383,571 389,905 414,128 402,532 477,122 528,585 552,645 618,662 640,222 643,684

Public Safety 1,185,26 1,209,04 1,254,56 1,299,54 1,387,52 1,568,50 1,533,24 1,580,56 1,626,30 1,524,94

General Government 456,549 486,225 510,590 529,659 542,424 508,522 519,597 599,846 555,201 588,866

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

General Fund Expenditures



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)
• Delinquent taxes receivable per year

o 2020: $77,978 (98% collection rate)
o 2019: $136,192 (98% collection rate)
o 2018: $110,252 (98% collection rate)
o 2017: $99,780 (99% collection rate)
o 2016: $104,442 (99% collection rate)
o 2015: $91,553 (99% collection rate)
o 2014: $56,126 (98% collection rate)
o 2013: $90,985 (96% collection rate)
o 2012: $83,886
o 2011: $91,342

• $3,075,507 collected on $3,153,485 levy for 2020 (98% collection rate)

7



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

8

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Revenues 2,270,399 2,312,806 2,321,470 2,398,261 2,545,371 2,552,817 2,809,931 2,919,769 3,059,660 3,124,195

Expenditures 2,231,588 2,234,711 2,370,963 2,440,386 2,441,402 2,625,128 2,717,029 2,825,560 2,850,703 2,796,448

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

General Fund Revenues & Expenditures



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

9

49.4% 54.9% 49.7%

46.6%
50.8%

40.7%
45.1%

39.5%

48.1%
51.1%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Unassigned Fund Balance - General Fund

Unassigned Fund Balance % of Annual Budgeted Expenditures



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

10

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

2020
(Current)

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Future Debt Service
(Principal & Interest)



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

11

-$300,000

-$200,000

-$100,000

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Sanitary Sewer Fund

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses less Depreciation Depreciation Nonoperating - net Transfers In Operating Income (Loss)



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

12

-$140,000

-$120,000

-$100,000

-$80,000

-$60,000

-$40,000

-$20,000

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Cash Flows from Operations

Cash Flows from Ops



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Financial Results (continued)

13

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Fiscal Year

Enterprise Funds - Unrestricted (Spendable) Net Position

Sanitary Sewer



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

MN Legal Compliance

• No Minnesota legal compliance issues noted.

14



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Required Communications

• Audit provides reasonable, but not absolute assurance

• Accounting policies – Did not implement any GASBS in the 
current year that significantly changed how statements are 
presented or how the accounting is performed for the City.

• Significant accounting Estimates

15



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Required Communications (continued)

• Audit Adjustments: 
o Reduced  accounts payable and expenditures in the Water Resource 

Fund for 2021 expenditures booked in 2020.

• Uncorrected Misstatements: None

• No disagreements or difficulties with management.

16



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Internal Control Letter

• Material Weakness
o 1 Material Audit Adjustment

• Significant Deficiencies
o None

• Management Comments
o None

17



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Future Accounting Standards

• GASB No. 87 – Leases
o Appliable December 31, 2022 

• GASB No. 96 – Subscription Based Information Technology 
Agreements
o Applicable December 31, 2023

18



WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOURCING 
AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen 
Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor

©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

19

Thank You!

Chris Knopik, Principal, CPA, CFE
612-397-3266
Christopher.Knopik@CLAconnect.com



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Variance from the Side Yard Setback for the Property 

 Located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2021 

Applicant: Brent Foster 

Owner: Brent Foster 

Location: 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle 

 
Request: 
Brent Foster, owner of the property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle (PID No. 02-118-24-12-
0007), is requesting the following action from the City: 
 

a. A variance to allow a reduced side yard setback for a detached accessory structure on the 
property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Cir. 

 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The owner’s property is located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle which is on the west side of the road on 
Lake Sarah.  The property is approximately .44 acres.  This property is considered an existing lot of record.   
Existing lots of record in the shoreland district are allowed to have reduced setbacks of 60% of the required 
setbacks.   
 

Property Information: 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle 
 Zoning: Rural Residential 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Detached Accessory Side Yard Setback: 15 feet from lot line or (60% of 15 feet) 9 feet 

Acreage: 0.44 acres 
Impervious Surface Maximum: 25% (4,871.75 square feet) 

  
 
 
 

 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle (blue outline) 

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking a variance from the south - side yard setback to allow the placement of a detached 
accessory structure (shed) to be located on the property. The applicant located the new 10’ x 12’ shed on 
the property last year.  The City notified the property owner that the shed needed to be permitted and did 
not meet the applicable side yard setback.  In addition, it was noted that the impervious surface calculation 
would need to be updated for the property. 
 
The applicant has an existing shed that is legal non-conforming located in the same area on the site.  The 
applicant thought that he would be able to add a new (120 SF or less) shed to the same location without a 
need for an additional permit.  The applicant is now asking the City to consider a variance to allow the shed 
to remain in its current location and directly in-line with the existing shed (see survey below). 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

 

 
 
The required side yard setback for detached accessory structures is nine (9) feet.  The existing shed is 
setback 4.4 feet from the side property line and the applicant is seeking a variance to allow the new shed to 
also be setback 4.4 feet from the side property line.  The proposed shed would require a five (5) foot 
variance. 
 
The property can have a maximum of 25% impervious surface coverage.  This property would be permitted 
to have 4,872 square feet of coverage.  The current site has a total impervious coverage of 6,566 square 
feet or 33% coverage.  This impervious surface calculation includes the new 120 SF shed.  The City has 
been working with the applicant relating to the impervious coverage issue. As a result and in order to bring 
the property into compliance, the applicant is proposing to replace the existing driveway (1,766 SF) with a 
new pervious paver driveway.  This would result in a reduction in the impervious surface coverage to 4,800 
SF or 24.6%.   
 
There are several factors to consider relating to the City’s consideration of granting a variance.  The City’s 
ordinance has established criteria for consideration in granting a variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 

EXISTING SHED 

NEW SHED 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential/Shoreland Overlay District.  
The applicant is seeking a variance to allow a second detached accessory structure on the 
property.  The existing structure and the proposed structure are similar in architecture, siding, 
color, etc. 

 
b. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  Many of the surrounding properties (not the 

property to the south) have detached accessory structures similar to that of the proposed.  The City 
has historically provided some relief to properties in the Shoreland Overlay District.  
 

c. There is an existing detached accessory structure located behind the house on the subject 
property. The overall size of this structure is approximately 120 SF.  The City allows a maximum of 
1,850 SF for the total permitted for all detached accessory structures on properties less than 2.5 
acres.  The total SF in the after condition would be 240 SF which is less than the maximum 
permitted. 

 
d. The proposed location allows access to the rear yard from the driveway.  Locating the shed further 

north would likely prohibit access to the rear yard. 
 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	5	
 

e. The applicant was granted a variance approximately 10 year ago for a deck stairway on the north 
side of the property line when adding an addition onto the existing home. 

 
f. Any approval would need to be subject to the applicant replacing the existing driveway with an 

approved permeable paver driveway. 
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion/Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners discussed the request with staff and the applicant.  Commissioners noted that the 
structure had been constructed without applicable permits.  Commissioners clarified that the existing shed 
predated the established ordinance. Commissioners discussed the requirement that the driveway needs to 
be replaced in order for the variance to be granted. Commissioners recommended that a condition be 
added that set an end date for the driveway replacement.  Commissioners recommended that the driveway 
replacement occur prior to October 15, 2021.  Commissioners thought that the requested home addition 
would be an improvement to the property and found that it met the criteria for granting a variance. 
Commissioners recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
The City has received verbal comments from an adjoining property owner who was concerned about the 
impact of the additional detached structure.   The adjacent property owner stated that he was in favor of the 
variance based on the proposed location at the public hearing. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a variance to the City Council with the following 
findings and conditions:   
 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 
Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following: 
 

a.  The approval of a variance is subject to the applicant replacing the entire concrete driveway 
with an approved permeable paver driveway.  The installation of the permeable paver 
driveway shall be in accordance with the approved detail and plan provided to the City and 
attached hereto as Exhibit B.  The resulting impervious lot coverage shall be no greater than 
25%. 

 
3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant.  

Specifically, the City finds the following: 
 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	6	
 

4. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential/Shoreland Overlay District.  
The applicant is seeking a variance to allow a second detached accessory structure on the property.  
The existing structure and the proposed structure are similar in architecture, siding, color, etc. 

 
5. The location of the shed on the property is in line with the existing shed.  The alignment, matching 

architecture and materials does mitigate some of the potential impacts of the proposed structure.  
 

6. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed detached accessory structure 
would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood.  

 
7. The variance will permit a 5-foot reduction (from 9 feet required to 4 feet permitted) of the south side 

yard setback to allow the proposed detached accessory structure as depicted on the site plan and 
building plans attached hereto as Exhibit B.   Any modification changes or alteration to the structure 
that does not meet applicable setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in 
the form of a variance. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Property Pictures 
2. Survey 
3. Permeable Paver Detail 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	7	
 

Attachment #1 

 

 



Brent	Foster,	Variance	Request	–	City	Council	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	8	
 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-0601-01 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVIING AN APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE   

TO ALLOW A REDUCED SIDE YARD SETBACK  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4755 LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS CIRCLE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 

laws of Minnesota; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 

the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 

in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Brent Foster, (the “Applicant/Owner”) submitted an application for a variance 

to allow a reduced side yard setback on the property located at 4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle 
(PID No. 02-118-24-12-0007) (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on attached Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS the requested variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications 

of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 
 
WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 18, 2021, to review 

the application for a variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 

considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Brent Foster and grants the requested variance for the property in accordance with the City’s 
zoning regulations with the following findings and conditions: 

 



 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 
in Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following: 
 

a.  The approval of a variance is subject to the applicant replacing the entire 
concrete driveway with an approved permeable paver driveway.  The 
installation of the permeable paver driveway shall be in accordance with the 
approved detail and plan provided to the City and attached hereto as Exhibit 
B.  The resulting impervious lot coverage shall be no greater than 25%. 

 
3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the 

applicant.  Specifically, the City finds the following: 
 

4. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential/Shoreland 
Overlay District.  The applicant is seeking a variance to allow a second detached 
accessory structure on the property.  The existing structure and the proposed structure 
are similar in architecture, siding, color, etc. 

 
5. The location of the shed on the property is in line with the existing shed.  The 

alignment, matching architecture and materials does mitigate some of the potential 
impacts of the proposed structure.  

 
6. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed detached 

accessory structure would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses 
found in this neighborhood.  

 
7. The variance will permit a 5-foot reduction (from 9 feet required to 4 feet permitted) 

of the south side yard setback to allow the proposed detached accessory structure as 
depicted on the site plan and building plans attached hereto as Exhibit B.   Any 
modification changes or alteration to the structure that does not meet applicable 
setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in the form of a 
variance. 

 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
1st day of June 2021, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays.    

 
 
 
______________________________ 

       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Site Plan) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Brent James Foster

Address: 4755 LAKE SARAH 
HEIGHTS CR
ROCKFORD, Minnesota 
55373

Primary Phone: 9528365499

Email: foster_brent@allergan.com

Name: Brent James Foster

Address: 4755 LAKE SARAH 
HEIGHTS CR
ROCKFORD, Minnesota 
55373

Primary Phone: 9528365499

Email: foster_brent@allergan.com

Property Address:

PID:

Planning Application Type: Variance

Description:

Supporting Documents: Site Survey (Existing Conditions)

Signature:



L

a

k

e

 

 

 

 

 

S

a

r

a

h

 

 

 

 

 

H

e

i
g

h

t

s

 

 

 

 

 

C

i
r

.

Lake

Sarah

Lake     Sarah

Heights     Cir.

Lake

Sarah

AutoCAD SHX Text
rip rap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dahl 1959 Position for the Meander Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID: 0211824120007 Area: 0.45±Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  House #4755

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deck

AutoCAD SHX Text
Patio Under  Deck

AutoCAD SHX Text
Stone Stairs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Covered Porch 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheds

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Pit Patio

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deck

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  House

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  House

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" Open 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" 18407

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" Open 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" Open 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" 12755 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" Remnant Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP  " 12" 14343

AutoCAD SHX Text
play set

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID: 0211824120006

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID: 0211824120005

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID: 0211824120004

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE		SARAH 	HEIGHTSSARAH 	HEIGHTSHEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID: 0211824120008

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake ID:27019100 Recreational Development Lake Ordinary High Water (OHW) Elevation = 979.9 (NGVD29) Highest Recorded  Elevation = 982.4 (NGVD 29) Water Elevation as of 10/2/20=978.2 (NGVD 29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
waters edge 10/2/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
lift  station

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing  Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text
The North line of Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
The South line of Gov't Lot 3,  Sec. 35, Twp. 119, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
The North line of the South 100ft of the North 300ft of Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
The South line of the South 100ft of the North 300ft of Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
sandy beach

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' ±

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
North line of the South 200 feet of the North 500 feet per Torrens Doc. No. 808846 Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
stairs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
covered stoop

AutoCAD SHX Text
South line of the North 400 feet of Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Setback  from OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
234.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
South line of the North 500 feet of Gov't Lot 2,  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG FILE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOGART, PEDERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL: 763-262-8822   FAX: 763-262-8844

AutoCAD SHX Text
13076 FIRST STREET, BECKER, MN 55308-9322

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
Part of Gov't Lot 2, Section 2, Township 118, Range 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificated of Survey

AutoCAD SHX Text
for

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brent and Heidi Foster 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:           Lic. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
of the State of Minnesota.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or

AutoCAD SHX Text
Licensed Land Surveyor under the laws 

AutoCAD SHX Text
report was prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text
direct supervision, and that I am a duly

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signed:

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/26/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21729

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rick M. Blom

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes tree, deciduous

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes gas meter

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 18407

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes Mark D. Kemper, LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes electric outlet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes found cast iron monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes well

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes power pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes existing adjoiners

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes stone wall

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes overhead electric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes electric meter

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes bituminous surface

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes concrete surface

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes set lath

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes found iron monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes gravel surface

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes air conditioning

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes Judicial Landmark (JLM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes waters edge

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of Survey Brent & Heidi Foster Pt. of Sec.2,Twp.118,Rng.24 Hennepin County, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/02/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
20-0363cos

AutoCAD SHX Text
20-0363.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes shrub/bush

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes ordinary high water (OHW) line

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Independence, Hennepin County, Minnesota

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes mulch surface

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 14343

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes Edward J. Otto, LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 12755

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes Mark S. Gronberg, LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE BENCHMARK MN/DOT Geodetic Station "2722 F" at Trunk Hwy 55 mile post 167.95, 49 feet south of Hwy 55, 51 feet north of railroad  Elevation = 995.0 feet (NGVD 29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION PER DOC. NO. 8615804 Exhibit A The South 100 feet of the North 300 feet of all that part of Government Lot 2, Section 2, Township 118 North Range 24 West, lying westerly of the following described line; The North line of said Government Lot 2, as re-set by the Hennepin County Surveyor of May 25, 1959; thence East along said North line 234 feet to the point of beginning of the line being described: thence deflecting right 70 degrees 49 minutes to the South line of the North 400 feet of said Government Lot 2 and there ending. Together with a non-exclusive easement for road purposes over the following described premises, Being a 30 feet strip of land in Government Lot 3, Section 35, Township 119 North, Range 24 West, Being a part of LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS, vacated, the centerline of which easement is described as follows: Beginning at the intersection of the North line of Lot 20, LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS, vacated, with the southwesterly right-of-way line of St. Paul & Sault Ste. Marie Railway; thence West along said North line to the northeasterly corner of said Lot 19, said LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS, vacated (and the South sideline of said 30 foot strip being extended east to intersect the said southwesterly right-of-way line); thence southwesterly to the southwesterly corner of said Lot 19; thence South 33 degrees 25 minutes East along the westerly line of Lots 18,17,16,15 and 14, LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS, vacated, to the South line of said Government Lot 3, and there ending (The Northeasterly sideline of said 30 foot strip being extended southeasterly to intersect said south line of said Government Lot 3. For the purposes of this description the south line of said Government Lot 3 is assumed to be due East and West line. Together with a non-exclusive easement for road purposes over the following described premises, being that part of Government Lot 2, Section 2, Township 118 North, Range 24 West, described as follows: Commencing at the meander corner of the  northeasterly shore of Lake Sarah and on the North Line of said Government Lot 2, as reset by the Hennepin County Surveyor on May 25, 1959; thence East along said North line 234 feet to the point of beginning of the easement being described; thence deflecting right 70 degrees 49 minutes to the South line of the North 400 feet of said Government Lot 2; thence deflecting right 31 degrees 41 minutes to the south line of the North 500 feet of said Government Lot 2; thence East along said South line of the North 500 feet a distance of 61.46; thence deflecting left 77 degrees 30 minutes to the South line of said North 400 feet; thence deflecting left 31 degrees 41 minutes to the North line of said Government Lot 2; thence west along said North line to the point of beginning, Hennepin County, Minnesota 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found Cast Iron Reference Monument to Meander Corner on the North Line of  Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24 Hennepin County, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found Cast Iron Monument Northeast Corner of Sec. 2, Twp. 118, Rng. 24 Hennepin County, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOV'T

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2308.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
2499.18--

AutoCAD SHX Text
--N 89°17'16" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4755 Lake Sarah Heights Circle

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING Rural Residential w/shore land overlay

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACKS 100' from OHW - Ordinary High Water 85' from centerline

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS CALCS Total Lot Area above OHW= 19,467 ± S.F.Patios/Walkways/Driveway Area = 2,692 ± S.F.House-Garage/Sheds Area = 3,874± S.F.Total Impervious Area = 6,566± S.F. (33.7%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(See Inset Map for Easement Thru LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SARAH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inset Map for Easement Thru  LAKE SARAH HEIGHTS (VACATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake Ave

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easement CL as described

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE Corner of Gov't Lot 3 Sec.35, Twp.119, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE Cor of Lot 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW Cor of Lot 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. Line of Gov't Lot 3 Sec.35, Twp.119, Rng. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Minneapolis, St. Paul & Sault Ste. Marie RR.





4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Variance from the Side Yard Setback for the  

Property Located at 4991 Perkinsville Road 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2021 

Applicant: Nate Bjerga 

Owner: Nate Bjerga 

Location: 4991 Perkinsville Road 

 
 
Request: 
Nate Bjerga (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the property located at 4991 
Perkinsville Rd. (PID No. 24-118-24-41-0010) in the City of Independence, MN: 
 

a. A variance to allow a reduced side yard setback to expand the legal non-conforming house on 
the subject property. 

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located at 4991 Perkinsville Road.  The property is on the south side of Perkinsville 
Road at the intersection of South Lake Shore Drive and Perkinsville Road.  There is an existing home on 
the subject property.   
 

Property Information: 4991 Perkinsville Road 
 Zoning: Rural Residential 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Acreage: 1.04 acres (43,365 square feet) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

4991 Perkinsville Road (blue line) 

 
 

 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking approval to construct an addition onto the existing home.  The addition includes 
living space as well as a new garage.  The existing home is currently a legal non-conforming structure that 
does not meet all applicable setbacks for this property.  The home does not meet either side yard setback 
(30 feet required).  
 
The applicant is asking the City to consider granting a variance from the side yard setback (west property 
line) to allow an expansion of the existing home that is in line with the existing side yard setback.  The City 
requires a side yard setback of 30 feet for properties zoned RR-Rural Residential.  The existing home is 



4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

located 21 feet from the west side property line.  The applicant is proposing to construct the home addition 
to extend north so that the side yard setback is 21 feet from the side property line rather than 30 feet as 
required.  The resulting variance to the side yard setback would be 9 feet.  The required setbacks for 
properties zoned RR-Rural Residential are as follows:  
 
 
Front Yard Setback:  

Required: 85 feet from centerline or 51 feet from the ROW 
Existing: 210 feet from centerline  
 

Rear Yard Setback:  
Required: 40 feet 
Existing: 203 feet 
 

Side Yard Setback (West Side): 
 Required: 30 feet  
 Existing: 21 feet 
 Proposed: 21 feet (variance of 9 feet) 

 

REQUIRED SETBACK  

PORTION OF EXISTING  
HOUSE TO REMAIN 
  
 

AREA OF HOME ADDITION 



4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance.  The City’s ordinance has established 
criteria for consideration in granting a variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 
is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.   
 

b. Many of the surrounding properties do not appear to be in compliance with all applicable principle 
or accessory structure setbacks. 

 
c. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed expansion and remodel of a 

single-family home is in keeping with the surrounding area. 
 
There are several additional items that could be considered by the City: 

1. Staff discussed alternative options for expanding the existing home with the applicant.  They noted 
that if they were to construct the garage further to the east, it would significantly impact the front 
entrance.  They also noted that they would like to maintain the general interior configuration of the 



4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	5	
 

home.  The proposed addition that stays in line with the existing structure allows for the best reuse 
and remodel layout of the existing home.   

2. The applicant could locate a detached accessory structure on this property and meet applicable 
setbacks (15 feet).  The applicant noted that they would like to maintain an attached garage.   

3. The applicant is purposing to construct an addition that does not increase the non-conforming 
setback of the existing structure. 

4. The proposed remodel of the existing home would likely increase the value of and bring an update 
to this property.   

5. The proposed home/garage addition is a two-story addition which will be taller than the portion of 
the existing structure that is currently located on this side of the property. 

Ultimately the City will need to find that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant.  
Due to the configuration of the house on the property and the layout of the existing house itself, there are 
limited ways to expands the structure that would not require a significant departure to the internal and 
external use of the existing home.  The setback of the proposed addition from Perkinsville Road and the 
natural screening and buffering that exists to the surrounding property appear to help mitigate the potential 
impacts. 

 
Planning Commission Discussion/Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners clarified the request with staff and the applicant.  Commissioners noted that the 
adjacent house to the west was setback a considerable distance from the shared property line.  
Commissioners noted that the lot is a unique in that it is narrower than most lots within the City.  
Commissioners thought that the requested home addition would be an improvement to the property and 
found that it met the criteria for granting a variance. Commissioners recommended approval to the City 
Council. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
The City has had several inquiries regarding the proposed addition/remodel, but no formal comments prior to the 
time this report was prepared. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a variance to the City Council with the following 
findings and conditions: 
 



4991	Perkinsville	Road	Variance	Request	 6.01.2021
	 	
	 Page	6	
 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 
Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following submittals: 
 

a.  A survey of the property and proposed building addition. 
 

b. A drainage plan at the time of building permit application.  The drainage plan will be reviewed by 
the City to ensure that the proposed improvements do not adversely impact any of the 
surrounding properties. 

 
3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant.  Specifically, 

the City finds the following: 
 

a) Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.  The applicant is 
seeking a variance to allow a building addition to the existing home on the property.   

 
b) The location of the proposed addition/remodel is in line with the existing home and building setback 

from the west property line.  The alignment with the existing building, updated building architecture 
and exterior finishes appear to mitigate some of the potential impacts resulting from the addition.  

 
c) The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed building addition and remodel 

would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood.  
 

4. The variance will permit an approximate 10-foot reduction (30-foot setback required variance to allow an 
approximate 20-foot setback) to allow the expansion of the home to be “in-line” with the existing 
structure without further encroaching into the side yard setback (west property line).  This variance will 
allow the proposed structure as depicted on the site plan and building plans attached hereto as Exhibit 
B. 
 

5. Any modification, change or alteration to the structure that does not meet applicable setbacks in the 
future would require additional review and approval in the form of a variance. 

 
6. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review and recording of the requested 

variance. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. House Plans/Elevations 

 
 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-0601-02 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVIING AN APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE   

TO ALLOW A REDUCED SIDE YARD SETBACK  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4991 PERKINSVILLE ROAD 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 

laws of Minnesota; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 

the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 

in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Nate Bjerga, (the “Applicant/Owner”) submitted an application for a variance 

to allow a reduced side yard setback on the property located at 4991 Perkinsville Road (PID No. 
24-118-24-41-0010) (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on attached Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS the requested variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications 

of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 
 
WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 18, 2021, to review 

the application for a variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 

considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Nate Bjerga and grants the requested variance for the property in accordance with the City’s 
zoning regulations with the following findings and conditions: 

 



 

1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 
Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the variance is subject to the following submittals: 
 

a.  A survey of the property and proposed building addition. 
 

b. A drainage plan at the time of building permit application.  The drainage plan will 
be reviewed by the City to ensure that the proposed improvements do not 
adversely impact any of the surrounding properties. 

 
3. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the 

applicant.  Specifically, the City finds the following: 
 

a) Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.  The 
applicant is seeking a variance to allow a building addition to the existing home on 
the property.   

 
b) The location of the proposed addition/remodel is in line with the existing home and 

building setback from the west property line.  The alignment with the existing 
building, updated building architecture and exterior finishes appear to mitigate some 
of the potential impacts resulting from the addition.  

 
c) The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed building addition 

and remodel would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in 
this neighborhood.  

 
4. The variance will permit an approximate 10-foot reduction (30-foot setback required) to 

allow the expansion of the home to be “in-line” with the existing structure without further 
encroaching into the side yard setback (west property line) which would allow the 
proposed structure as depicted on the site plan and building plans attached hereto as 
Exhibit B.  
 

5. Any modification, change or alteration to the structure that does not meet applicable 
setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in the form of a 
variance. 

 
6. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review and recording of 

the requested variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
1st day of June 2021, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays.    

 
 
 
______________________________ 

       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Site Plan) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Nate Bjerga

Address: 4991 Perkinsville Rd
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6512740411

Secondary Phone: 6513871812

Email: natebjerga@hotmail.com

Name: Nate Bjerga

Address: 4991 Perkinsville Rd
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6512740411

Secondary Phone: 6513871812

Email: natebjerga@hotmail.com

Property Address:

PID:

Planning Application Type: Variance

Description:

Supporting Documents: Preliminary/Final Plan

Signature:



30
68

8830TS4030RS

2632

2668

4'-8 1/4"

MECH.

FAMILY

STORAGE
BELOW
STEPS

GARAGE

F/P
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FOOTPRINT 1/4" = 1'-0"

30
68

4030SC4030SC4030RS

2668

UP

56
'

26
'

4'

24'-6"10'

4'-8"

24'

4'
-0

 1/
2"

42'

4'-8 3/4"

SAME EXISTING FOUNDATION

S
A

M
E 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 F
OU

ND
A

TI
ON

NE
W

 F
OU

ND
A

TI
ON

SAME EXISTING FOUNDATION

PROPOSED FOUNDATION PLAN 1/4" = 1'-0"

P-1

SHEET:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

1
3/

20
/2

02
1

JO
H

N
    

SCALE:

49
91

 P
E

R
K

IN
S

V
IL

LE
 R

D

N
A

TE
 &

 J
E

S
S

IC
A

 B
JE

R
G

A

PRELIMINARY NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE:

M
A

P
LE

 P
LA

IN
 M

N
 5

53
59

3/21/2021



8840TS4568MU4040RS

28
40

S
C

16080

9268346824682668

83
68

2668

2830SC 5966 3068

42'

26
'-0

 3
/8

"

7'-8 1/2"

3'

3'
-6

 1/
2"

9'
-1

0
 1/

2"

7'-0 1/2"

18'-3 1/4"

14'-9"

4'-9"

4'
-9

"

12'

9'-9"

11'
-1

0
 1/

2"
13

'-5
"

24
'

23'-8"

25
'-3

 1/
2"

NOTE 
ALL EXISTING DIMENSIONS TAKEN FROM INTERIOR 

TYP.

SPLIT ENTRY
FRAME IN FOR NEW

KITCHEN DINING

LIVINGENTRY

GARAGE

1st Floor

DN

B
E

N
C

H

D/W

B
E

N
C

H

REF.

57710MU

2830SC 5966 2840SC

26
68

2668

16080

28
40

LS
28

40
LS

28
40

LS
28

40
LS

60
14

FX
50

40
D

H
60

14
FX

60
14

FX

2068

4030SC4030SC2640SC2640SC

8070 3068

49
68

8068

24682668

UP

UP

26
'

4'

5' 5'

1'-8" 2'
-8

"
4'

-9
 1/

2"
2'

-8
"

3'-2 3/4"

3'

3'

29
'-4

 1/
4"

12'

7'
-3

"

2'
-5

 3
/4

"

2'-2 1/4"

11'
-5

"

5'
-2

"
5'

6
'-0

 1/
2"

5'
-6

"
3'

-9
"

5'5'

9'-5 1/2"

4'

4'

3'
6

'
5'

-5
 3

/4
"

5'
-5

 3
/4

"
6

'

1/2"27'-8 1/4"

25'-6 1/4"

25'-5 3/4"

23'-8"

56
'

24'-6"10'

34'-6"

7'-8 1/2"

3'

13
'-5

"

4'-9"

4'
-9

"

11'
-1

0
 1/

2"
13

'-5
"

30
'

26
'

25
'-3

 1/
2"

6
'

5'1'

+ 
OR

 -

DEMISING WALL BY OWNER

Matt Barger is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. Join Zoom Meeting https://us05web.zoom.us/j/83201044585?
pwd=aDdKSm9odHZFVW5iMnBwbHNCNmJnUT09 Meeting ID: 832 0104 4585 Passcode: 16nQ6W

KITCHEN DINING

LIVING ROOM

EX
IS

TI
NG

 R
OO

F

NE
W

 V
A

UL
TE

D 
RO

OF

PANTRY

9'-1-1/8"  PLATE HGT

8'-0" OPG.

VAULT LINE
SLOPE

SLOPE

8'  PLATE HGT EXISTING

MATCH EXISTING MAIN FL PLATE HGT

18" MANUF. FLOOR TRUSSES

SPACING PER MANUF.

TOOL BOX

OP
TI

ON
 G

A
S

 F
/P

FURR WALL 4 TO 6"

FL
A

T 
CE

IL
IIN

G

PROPOSED MAIN FLOOR 1/4" = 1'-0"

P-2

SHEET:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

1
3/

20
/2

02
1

JO
H

N
    

SCALE:

49
91

 P
E

R
K

IN
S

V
IL

LE
 R

D

N
A

TE
 &

 J
E

S
S

IC
A

 B
JE

R
G

A

PRELIMINARY NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE:

M
A

P
LE

 P
LA

IN
 M

N
 5

53
59

3/21/2021



DN

U
21

24
90

R

60
18

FX
40

18
FX

34
46

D
C

34
46

D
C

3149SC3149SC3149SC3149SC

2668

24
68

3068

2668

26
68

6069 3446DC

2868

24'-6"

3'
-6

"

2'
-6

"

16'

6
'

2' 3' 11 1/2"

6'

6
'-4

 3
/4

"

3'-3 3/4"

4'
-1

0
"

3'-11 1/2" 6'-9" 12'-8 1/2"

23'-6"

14
'-0

 1/
2"

1'-
2"

9'
-4

 1/
2"

1'-
2"

2'
-8

"

3'-8 1/2"

2'3'-1"

16
'-6

 1/
2"

2'

5'
-9

 1/
4"

6'-11"

5'
-6

"

12'-8 1/2"

12
'-2

 1/
2"

3'
-1

1 1
5/

16
"

6'

2'-8"

23'-5"

5'

8
'

4'
-2

 3
/4

"
3'

-6
"

2'-4"3'

18'-9 1/2"4'-8"

2'-10 1/2"4 1/2"6'-4 1/2"3'-1"

56
'

RAIN SHWR

MASTER BATH

WALLS BELOW

WALK IN

MASTER SUITE

FLR. COVERING =
CPT.W

A
LL

S
 B

EL
OW

WALLS BELOW

Hi Matt, 
  
Below are a few notes on the plan. We are loving how this is coming together! Wednesday works best for us to meet.
Should we plan for 7:30pm again? 
  
- Let’s update the master bedroom door to a standard right handed swing-right door. Taking out the French doors.  
- For flooring upstairs, we’d like to do carpet in the bedrooms, hallway and closet. Something similar to what we
currently have in our basement. Then tile in the bathroom.  
- You mentioned a 9’ ceiling? Want to confirm we have 9’ in the garage (both), then 8’ upstairs.  
- In the entryway, we’re you able to find a place for the closet and a built in?  
- We’d like to do a large white marble tone tile in the entryway, similar to what we have in our entry way now.  
- Let’s remove the brick bases from the exterior cedar posts. And if you could make them cedar tone in the picture,
that would be nice to see!  
- Nate measured the current garage and confirmed 284 inches inside face to face of sheetrock.  
  
Thanks!  
Jessica 

HALL
BUILT IN

SAFE AREA
24" W X 20"
DEEP 58"

TALLFLR. COVERING =
CPT.

FLR. COVERING = CPT.

BEDROOM 1
FLR. COVERING =

CPT.

WALK IN

FLR. COVERING = C.T.

BATH
FLR. COVER

= C.T.

8'-1-1/8"  PLATE HGT

OPTION SUN TUNNEL

FR
A

M
E 

IN
 F

OR
 G

A
S

 F
/P

A-1

SHEET:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

1
3/

20
/2

02
1

JO
H

N
    

SCALE:

49
91

 P
E

R
K

IN
S

V
IL

LE
 R

D

N
A

TE
 &

 J
E

S
S

IC
A

 B
JE

R
G

A

PRELIMINARY NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE:

M
A

P
LE

 P
LA

IN
 M

N
 5

53
59

3/21/2021



A-2

SHEET:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

     

SCALE:

49
91

 P
E

R
K

IN
S

V
IL

LE
 R

D

N
A

TE
 &

 J
E

S
S

IC
A

 B
JE

R
G

A

PRELIMINARY NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE:

M
A

P
LE

 P
LA

IN
 M

N
 5

53
59

3/21/2021


	Brent Foster_City Council_6.01.2021 copy.pdf
	BRENT FOSTER PERMEABLE PAVERS.pdf
	20-0363cos Brent Foster 2-118-24
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1
	Sheet 1



	PAVER SYSTEM





